

PREFACE

This constitution of the Chamber of Commerce & Industry (Regd.), Jammu was adopted by the Chamber on 16th day of March, 1960 and certain amendments were made on 15th January, 1987 and 5th March, 2002. Keeping in view the rapid growth of the organization, the Globalization of Commerce and Industry, the challenges from the multinationals some amendments were made on 5th March, 2002. To make it more stringent to enforce discipline and transparency certain important amendments were made and approved (in the Special General Meeting on December 19th, 2018 at Radisson Blu under Clause 10(a) of Chamber's Constitution and notified to all Chamber through print media). This copy of the constitution has been made update incorporating all the current amendments.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I, **Rakesh Gupta President**, Chamber of Commerce & Industry (Regd.) Jammu along with our office bearers namely **Sh. Rajesh Gupta Sr. Vice President, Sh. Rajeev Gupta Jr. Vice President, Sh. Manish Gupta Secretary General, Sh. Gaurav Gupta Secretary, Sh. Ashu Gupta Treasurer**, sincerely put on record our thanks and gratitude to the Co- Chairman of the Constitution Amendment Committee **Sh. Rajendra Motial** and also thank **Sh. Vinod Sachdeva, Sh. Bhuvneshwar Gandotra, Sh. Jagdish Langer, Sh. Chander Parkash Gupta, Sh. Jatinder Gupta, Sh. Anil Suri, Sh. Rajan Gupta, Sh. Sanjay Aggarwal, Sh. Raman Suri, Sh. Kirti Gupta, Sh. Rakesh Gupta, Sh. Bhupesh Gupta** all members of the said Committee who have done commendable job in finalizing the long felt proposed amendments for streamlining the working of Chamber of Commerce & Industry after consulting experts, worthy members and by studying various constitutions of premier national level organizations.

Our profound thanks are also due to the worthy members in general and the members of the Executive Committee in particular whose guidance made it possible for us to meet the long cherished demand of effecting the most required amendments in Chamber's constitution.

RAKESH GUPTA

President

CONSTITUTION OF THE
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE & INDUSTRY (REGD.)
JAMMU

We, the members of the Chamber of Commerce & Industry (Regd.) Jammu have resolved to give this amended constitution to the Chamber.

In our Special General Meeting, on 19th day of December, 2018, we do hereby adopt and give to ourselves this constitution to secure all its aims and objectives.

The Chamber of Commerce & Industry (Regd.) Jammu as constituted under this constitution shall be successor to the predecessor body for all purposes and shall succeed to all rights, titles and interests of the predecessor body. The liabilities and assets of the predecessor body shall be the liabilities and assets of the successor Chamber of Commerce & Industry (Regd.) Jammu.

1. NAME:

The name of the Association shall be Chamber of Commerce & Industry (Regd.) Jammu.

2. REGISTERED OFFICE:

The registered office of the Chamber of Commerce and Industry (Regd.) shall be situated at OB 31, Rail Head Complex, Jammu.

3. AIMS AND OBJECTIVES:

The aims and objectives of the Chamber shall be:-

- (a) To watch and to safeguard the interests of the Industrial and Trading Community of the Jammu Province.
- (b) To advise the Government, the Industrialists and the Traders regarding all matters affecting their mutual interest.
- (c) To strive for the betterment of all types of Commerce and Industry and to improve their lot.

- (d) To ensure honesty and root out corruption in business dealings.
- (e) To propagate scientific and modern techniques in Commerce and Industry.
- (f) To do all such things as may be considered conducive to the betterment of relations between the Government, the business community and the public. Also to establish such type of institutions or places for frequent interactions, social and business meetings and to provide facilities to business and industry for smooth conduct of their activities. Moreover to work for establishing business club for social activities and gatherings for the benefit of the members.
- (g) To act as a spokesman of the Business Community.
- (h) To subscribe or to cooperate with or to seek affiliation with any other Business Organization in the country or abroad whose objects are in conformity with or in part similar to those of the Chamber.
- (i) To accept subscription or cooperation or affiliation from any other Business Organization in the country whose objects are in conformity with or in part similar to those of the Chamber.
- (j) To act as an arbitrator in the settlement of disputes arising out of the commercial transactions.
- (k) To thrive for upgradation of Chamber's working through Information Technology and other latest trends.
- (l) To apprise and assist members about latest labour, taxation, banking and other relevant laws.
- (m) To consider all questions connected with or effecting agriculture, trade, commerce and manufacturers; to obtain the removal of grievances effecting businessmen or mercantile interests in general; and to promote or oppose legislative and other measures as circumstances may require for the benefit of business community.
- (n) To collect and disseminate data, statistics and information relating to agricultural, trade, commerce and industrial activities.
- (o) To organize periodic meetings, seminars and symposia with government officials and to seek clarification and solution to the problems confronting the interests of the members.
- (p) To organize Trade and Industrial missions comprising members, specialists and entrepreneurs both in India and abroad, to arrange meetings with the Foreign Trade and Industrial teams visiting India.
- (q) To formulate expert opinion on topical subjects by organizing meetings, seminars, conferences and workshops periodically and to submit wherever necessary their recommendations to the concerned authorities and to render advice to the members.

- (r) To obtain and disseminate expert advice on different problems and solutions thereto in connection with taxation, excise and customs, company law, Industrial licensing and import-export to members, also , matters relating to Labour law, weights & measures, Industrial relations, food and supplies and public health.
- (s) To issue certificates of origin and to certify commercial invoices in case of export documentation.
- (t) To encourage, assist, guide and render specialized services to the Industries, including availability of raw materials, plant and equipments, technical know-how, cost of installation, production and legal procedure, arrangements of funds, marketing for sale of manufactured goods etc.
- (u) To act as an information centre, to collect literature, books periodicals, magazines and other publications from all over the world, to disseminate factual information on all matters concerning business and industry, to establish and run a modern library for reference, assistance and advantage of the members.
- (v) To publish books, brochures and papers on subjects of topical interest and proceeding of seminars and conferences organized by the Chamber for the information and guidance of the members.
- (w) To create public opinion, encourage and activate social responsibilities of business enterprises and to establish just and equitable principles in trade, commerce and industry.
- (x) To organize exhibitions and/or take up mass communication projects by means of newsletters, circulars, notices, newspapers, magazines, periodicals, cinemas, television, radio and information technology.
- (y) To acquire, purchase, build or take on lease or hire any movable or immovable property or rights for and on behalf of the Chamber and publish a news letter/ news magazine for internal circulation.
- (z) To make available the surplus immovable assets of Chamber of Commerce and Industry to the affiliated organizations after completing the necessary legal requirements.

And generally to do all such acts, deeds and things necessary or incidental to or for the attainment of the above objectives.

4. FUNDS:

The funds of the Chamber shall be composed of:

- (a) Admission Fee as to be fixed by the Executive Committee from time to time.
- (b) Annual Subscription as to be fixed by the Executive committee from time to time.
- (c) Donations, Gifts and Grants.

The funds of the Chamber of Commerce & Industry (Regd.) shall be applied for the promotion of the objects of the Chamber as stated in the constitution, in the payment of expenses for the administration of the Chamber, and any other payment directed by the Executive Committee. The funds not immediately required shall be deposited in the bank or banks or as may be decided by the Executive Committee.

5. MEMBERSHIP:

The membership shall consist of:

- (a) Experts & Professionals*/Individuals not in government service who join through an application for registration, as are approved by the Executive Committee.
- (b) Traders and Industrialists as are approved by the Executive Committee.
- (c) Trade/Industrial/Professional Organizations as are approved by the Executive Committee.

5.1 The application form for membership shall be made on the prescribed form (obtainable from the Secretary General) on Cash payment, as fixed by the Executive Committee from time to time and shall be accompanied by Admission fee/annual subscription building fund as fixed by Executive Committee and proof of being Income Tax Assessee.

5.2 The application shall be signed by the Principal member only. The firm/ Association shall also intimate in the prescribed column the name of the Alternate member.

5.3 The alternate member shall have all the powers and privileges of the Principal member except contesting the Election and nomination to the Working Committee. The alternate member shall be entitled to vote in the absence of the Principal member.

5.4 The Executive Committee shall have the right to change the Principal as well as Alternate member by charging a prescribed fee as fixed by the Executive Committee from time to time on submission of written request signed by both the existing Principal Member & Alternate member to the Secretary General. In case of death of the Principal Member the Alternate member shall intimate to the Secretary

General the name of the Principal/Alternate Member before 31st December every year. (In case of death no fee shall be charged for effecting the said change).

5.5 The Executive Committee shall consider the application and may accept or reject it without assigning any reason. In case of rejection the amount deposited with the application shall be refunded within one month of the rejection by the Executive Committee.

5.6 Alternate Member

The Alternate member should be the blood relation of the Principal Member/Legal heir, Partner or Director of the Firm/Company or bonafide employee.

6. CRITERION FOR BECOMING MEMBER:

- (a) An Establishment/Professional having atleast three years standing and any Business or Professional Association having democratic character.
- (b) Should be regular Income Tax Assessee atleast for three consecutive years.

7. SEIZURE OF MEMBERSHIP:

Membership shall be seized in case of:

- (a) Death in case of individual/professional
- (b) Bankruptcy
- (c) Discontinuation of the business
- (d) Failure to pay the prescribed subscription for two consecutive years latest by 15th December preceding election year.

8. TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP:

Membership shall be terminated in case of:

- (a) Lunacy in case of Professional/Individual.
- (b) Conviction for criminal offence in case of Professional /Individual.
- (c) Dissolution of the firm.*

The Powers of termination of membership** shall be vested in the Executive Committee only.

9. EXPULSION:

A member may be expelled:

- (a) If he/she willfully deceives the Chamber of Commerce & Industry (Regd.) by false statements.
- (b) If he/she intentionally does any act detrimental to the interests of the Chamber as verified and supported by 2/3rd majority in the Executive Committee who will then recommend to the General House for formal expulsion of the said member. That member may finally be expelled by a resolution carried by a simple majority of votes given at a special general meeting/ annual general meeting of the Chamber of Commerce & Industry Jammu.

10. GENERAL COUNCIL:

The Supreme authority shall be vested in the General Council.

(A) Any Special General Meeting of the General Council other than for the purpose of Election shall be termed as Special General Meeting of the house. Special General Meeting can also be called at the written request of fifteen percent of the members of the total membership. Special General Meeting shall necessarily be called atleast once in a year if Amendment of the constitution is proposed and also at such times as summoned by the Executive committee.

The Special General Meeting of the General council shall be called at seven day's notice to the members and the Special General Meeting shall have the powers to transact the following business:

- (a) Amendment of the constitution.
- (b) Expulsion of the membership.
- (c) Matter which may be referred to it by the Executive Committee.
- (d) To transact any other important matter with the consent of the President.

Quorum for the Special General Meeting shall be 1/4th of the membership on the register. In case there is no quorum within one hour, the meeting shall be adjourned.

Every such adjourned meeting shall be summoned within one month from the date of adjournment but not earlier than seven days. The notice for Special General Meetings shall be published in minimum two leading dailies of the State atleast seven days before the day fixed for such meetings and if possible members may be intimated individually also.

(B) Biennial General Council Meeting (Election Meeting):

The Biennial General Council Meeting (Election Meeting) must be held on first Sunday of March after every two years except in case of Natural Calamity/ Act of God/ Wars/ Unprecedented law and order or other problem to be justified in the meeting of the Executive Committee and Resolution passed in the Special General Meeting and notified to the General Council. But in no case such election meeting

shall be postponed for more than term length of two years as per Clause 16 until passed in a Special General Meeting and decisions notified to the General Council.

In such meetings the following business shall be transacted.

(a) Consideration of accounts.

(b) Election of office Bearers

Quorum for the biennial General Council Meeting (Election Meeting) shall be 1/10th of the members on the register but not less than hundred members.

In case there is no quorum in the Election Meeting within one hour of the time fixed, the meeting shall be adjourned. However the adjourned meeting shall be recalled after the gap of two hours. In that case, in recalled meeting irrespective of the quorum the business of the agenda shall be transacted and shall be carried through by majority vote.

11. AGENDA:

The Agenda proposed for the General Council meeting shall be despatched to all the members atleast seven days before the day fixed for the meeting. No matter shall be discussed in the General Council meeting which has not been included in the Agenda of the meeting, provided that the President may in the case of urgency permit the discussion of such matters as are not included in the Agenda.

12. VOTING:

Each member shall have one vote. Voting by proxy shall not be allowed. A member shall forfeit his right to vote in the General Council Meeting if the prescribed yearly subscription is not paid by the 31st of December of the year preceding the Election year.

All matters in the General Council Meeting shall be decided by majority vote and in case of tie the Election President shall decide the issue by "TOSS".

All the matters in the Executive Committee shall also be decided by majority vote and in case of tie the President or the member holding the Presidential chair, shall have the powers of casting vote.

13. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:

The Executive Committee shall exercise all the powers of the Chamber of Commerce & Industry except those reserved for the General Council.

- (a) To maintain a true and accurate account of all the assets and the money received and expended.
- (b) To keep a true and accurate account of all the assets and the liabilities of the Chamber of Commerce & Industry (Regd.), Jammu.
- (c) To keep a correct and up-to date register of the members.
- (d) To prepare and lay before the General Council Meeting an income and expenditure account, a balance sheet and the budget.
- (e) To sanction Contingent expenditure.
- (f) To admit new members. The names of all fresh applicants for membership shall be circulated to the members of the executive committee for approval.
- (g) To fix the amount of the imprest money to be kept by the Secretary General/Secretary.
- (h) To permit and provide facilities to the members to inspect books of the Chamber during working hours of the office and consider their objections.
- (i) To summon General Council Meeting as required by the constitution and see that its resolutions are carried out.
- (j) To fill up temporarily any vacancy among office bearers or members of the Executive Committee.
- (k) To appoint sub-committees from the members of the Chamber.
- (l) The executive committee shall not exceed 5% of the total members and shall not be less than 21 members exclusive of present office bearers, past, Presidents and Past Secretary Generals. Only Principal members of the member firms who are Principal members for the last two clear years shall be eligible to be nominated on the executive committee. Term of Executive Committee shall automatically expire with the term of nominating President.
- (m) The Executive Committee meetings shall necessarily be held regularly after six months or even earlier in case of any need.

14. ABSENCE FROM THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

If any member of the Executive Committee absents himself for more than three consecutive meetings except for illness, absence from the station or trip abroad or for reasons explained

sufficiently to the satisfaction of the Executive Committee in writing, he shall automatically cease to be a member of the Executive Committee without any notice.

15. MONEY:

All the money shall be deposited into the Bank or Banks appointed by the Executive Committee and payments shall be made by cheques or out of the money drawn from the Bank. The account shall be operated by any two of the following:

1. President
2. Secretary General
3. Treasurer

16. TERM OF OFFICE BEARERS:

The Term of Office Bearers shall be two years and the term of two years shall automatically commence from the very next day of declaration of election results. The total working days of the elected chamber team in any case will not exceed 735 days inclusive of working days and holidays. In the event of the continuation of the elected team after 735 days then the financial powers of the team shall come to an end automatically and the bank authorities will not entertain the transactions of the outgoing team and the outgoing team will also be debarred from taking any policy decision after the expiry of 735 days until the extension of term is passed in Special General Meeting and Notified to all members otherwise the PRESIDIUM shall take over and notify the Elections as per Constitution within one week of the expiry of the term of Office Bearers.

17. PRESIDENT:

The President shall be elected by the General Council but without violating the term of Clause (16) whereby in any case his/her term shall never be beyond two years as defined in Clause (16) of the Constitution. He will hold the office as long as he enjoys the confidence of the General Council. A vote of no confidence can be moved against him in the General Council meeting and will be considered carried, if two third members of the total membership of the Chamber vote against him. The meeting of the Chamber can be called for this purpose if 20% of the members demand it in writing.

The President will be the spokesperson of the Chamber. He /She shall preside and control the business of all the meetings of the Chamber. In the event of his/her absence, the Senior Vice

President and in case of later's absence too the Junior Vice President shall preside over and in the event of absence of the both, the Executive Committee shall nominate a Chairperson(for the particular meeting only) from amongst its members.

It is mandatory for President to nominate the members of the Executive Committee within one month of the Election and the names of the nominated members shall be notified to the members of the Chamber. All past Presidents and Past Secretary Generals presently members on the register of Chamber of Commerce & Industry shall be the members of every Executive Committee.

The *President shall also constitute the required expert committees and may co-opt some members in the Executive Committee for the benefit of the better working of Chamber.

The President shall also constitute a Presidium comprising of two past Presidents, two past Secretary Generals and five members of eminence. The duties of the Presidium shall be to ensure strict adherence and compliance of the Constitution of Chamber of Commerce & Industry by the office bearers and all the members of Chamber of Commerce & Industry. It will be mandatory for the members having any grievance regarding the violation of the constitution by the office bearers to report such matters to the Presidium instead of approaching the courts of law directly. The ruling by the Presidium shall be binding on all the members and office bearers of Chamber.

The President shall have the powers to nominate five persons of eminence as his honorary advisors who shall not have the right to vote and their term will expire with the term of nominating President. However, the President shall have the right to withdraw any of the nomination or change with some other person.

In case of the resignation of President or prolonged absence for more than six months during his term, the Senior Vice President shall perform the duties of the President till the end of his term. No new elections shall be held for the same.

18. ACTING PRESIDENT:

If the President is away from Jammu or notifies the Executive Committee that he will be unable to preside and perform the duties of the President owing to illness or otherwise, the Senior Vice President shall act as Acting President.

19. SECRETARY GENERAL:

The Secretary General shall be elected by the General Council.

The Secretary General will be Ex-Officio member of all the sub committees formed by the Executive Committee or by the President. He will hold the Office so long as he enjoys the confidence of the General Council. A vote of no confidence can be moved against him in the General Council and will be considered carried, if two-third members of the total membership of the chamber vote against him. The meeting of the General Council can be called for this purpose, if 20% members demand it.

The duties of the Secretary General shall be:

- (a) To superintend the working of the office.
- (b) To give effect to the decisions of the Executive Committee and the General Council.
- (c) To keep an up to date record of the minutes of the meetings and of all the proceedings of the Chamber including expert committees.
- (d) To superintend the maintaining of registers and correspondence.
- (e) To issues notice of the General Council Meetings and meetings of the Executive Committee.
- (f) To incur contingent expenditure subject to the sanction of the Executive committee.
- (g) To keep in hand imprest money as may be determined by the Executive Committee.
- (h) To generally conduct the business of the Chamber of Commerce & Industry (Regd.) Jammu.
- (i) The Secretary General shall be assisted by the Secretary.
- (j) If Secretary General is away from Jammu or notifies to the Executive Committee that he will be unable to work and perform the duties of the Secretary General owing to illness or otherwise, the Secretary will act as Acting Secretary General.

20. TREASURER:

The duties of the Treasurer shall be:

- (a) To keep all the accounts of the Chamber.
- (b) To collect Annual Subscriptions.
- (c) To issue receipts for the money received by the Chamber duly countersigned by the Secretary General.
- (d) To operate the accounts of the Chamber jointly with the President or the Secretary General in the Bank or Banks to be approved by the Executive Committee.
- (e) To receive and disburse money in accordance with the direction of the Executive Committee, the President and the Secretary General.

21. CONSTITUTION AMENDMENT:

No alteration or addition to the Constitution shall be made unless notice of the same has been given first to the Executive Committee which shall place the proposed amendments before the General Council for final decision unless a majority of the Executive Committee present have voted against it.

22. RESOLUTIONS:

Any resolution passed at one meeting of the Executive Committee shall not be rescinded at a subsequent meeting unless due notice is previously given of such intention, nor shall any of the standing order be altered, rescinded or added to without such notice and unless six months have lapsed when the resolution intended to be altered, rescinded or added was passed.

23. INDEMNITY OF ACTS DONE IN GOOD FAITH:

The Executive Committee, the office bearers and the members of the Sub Committees shall be indemnified in respect of all acts done by them for the Chamber in good faith and no office bearer or member of the Executive Committee or Sub- Committee shall be liable for any act done by him.

24. LIABILITY:

The liability of the member shall be limited.

25. NOMINATION ON GOVERNMENT OR PUBLIC COMMITTEES:

In case a member of the Chamber gets nominated by virtue of his being member of the chamber on any committee, Government or Public, the member shall function on such committee under the directions of the Chamber.

26. ELECTION RULES:

(i) Eligibility for being Candidate

a) Only such Principal Member of the firm who has been Principal Member on the Register of the Chamber for consecutive five years shall be eligible to contest the election of the Chamber.

b) The minimum academic qualification of the contestants for the post of President, Senior Vice President and Secretary General respectively will be graduation or equivalent degree from genuinely recognized University.

c) No office bearers shall be eligible to contest the elections on the same post after completion of two consecutive terms. At least one term shall be a cooling period to contest on the same post.

(ii) An Election Committee comprising of Election President along with three members shall be constituted by the Executive Committee to hold the General Election with the help of retiring Secretary General. The Election President and the members of the Election Committee shall not be eligible for contesting the election.

iii) Nominations for President, Sr. Vice President, Jr. Vice President, Secretary General, Secretary and Treasurer shall be in writing and received at least 14 clear days before the election meeting.

iv) Every nomination must state clearly the name and address of the member to be nominated. Nomination paper shall be signed by the Proposer and shall be seconded with full name and address and by the member to be nominated signifying his willingness to contest as President, Sr. Vice President, Jr. Vice President, Secretary General, Secretary or Treasurer as the case may be.

v) Nomination papers will be proposed / seconded by the principal members only, who should not be defaulters in Chamber's records.

vi) The maximum number of nomination papers for contesting any post will be three .

vii) No Candidate can file nomination papers for more than one post in the same election.

Viii) Nomination papers can be withdrawn in writing at least 10 clear days before the election.

ix) The Nomination papers will be scrutinized by the scrutinizing committee * 13 clear days before the election. The decision of the scrutinized committee (election committee) regarding rejection etc. will be final and irrevocable.

x) The names of the candidates shall be circulated among the members at least seven days before the election through print media.

xi) The nominations forms will be issued to the candidates on payment as fixed by the Executive Committee from time to time.

xii) The names of the candidates shall be printed on the ballot papers in alphabetical order.

xiii) After the scrutiny of the nomination papers every candidate will be entitled to get one copy of the Electoral Roll free of cost. Additional copies of Electoral Roll shall be supplied on payment as fixed by the Executive Committee from time to time.

Electoral Rolls should be ready at least one month before the election and should be made available to the members on payment as fixed by the Executive Committee from time to time.

The Notification for the Biennial General body meeting(Election meeting) shall be dispatched / or published in at least one English and one Hindi Local Dailies for wider information at least 21 clear days (both dates excluded) before the date of election.

The names of the candidates whose withdrawal from the contest are received after the last date of withdrawal of nomination papers will be printed on the ballot papers but the votes obtained by such candidates shall be considered invalid.

xiv) Voting will be by secret ballot and counting shall be done soon after on spot and the result announced. The decision of the Election President with regard to any matter pertaining to Election or counting will be last and final. Only candidates and one of their counting Agents will be entitled to supervise the counting of votes.

xv) Office Bearers of any Political Party shall not be eligible to contest the election of any office of the Chamber. In case during the term, any office bearer of the Chamber gets elected/ selected/nominated as an office bearer of a Political Party, he/she shall resign from his/her post of Chamber. The office bearers of the affiliated Associations of Chamber of Commerce & Industry shall not be eligible to contest the election of Chamber. However if the office bearers of said associations are also member of Chamber in their individual/firm capacity, this clause shall not apply to them.

xvi) The canvassing shall be done in a way so as to avoid bickering amongst members and only through personal letters. Social Media like WhatsApp, SMS, Facebook or Twitter. No Print media/TV/personal TV Bites/ Radio/ outdoors pamphlets like banners, hoardings, printers, kiosks etc, door to door canvassing or throwing indoor/ outdoor parties shall be used by the persons contesting the election of office bearers or by their supporters or any third persons. Any violation in canvassing shall disqualify the contesting member from contesting election. This model code of conduct will come into force immediately after the notification of Election date.

All members shall in writing agree to abide by the constitution of the Chamber and all resolutions of the General Meetings.

xvii) The Election President before 72 hours of the elections shall organize a meeting of voters “MEET THE CONTESTANTS” in the chamber house or at any convenient place in Jammu wherein all the contesting candidates shall be given opportunity of 05 to ten 10 minutes to express their views or to make their presentation before the voters exposing their manifesto and future plans for making chamber a vibrant and progressive institution for the MEMBERS.

All the speakers/contesting candidates will speak extempore before the August gathering and the basic object will be to give an opportunity to the voters to on spot assess the intellectual abilities of their future chamber leaders. This exercise is devised to patronize and encourage young, dynamic, educated and fire brand speakers to lead the prestigious organization. The timelines for the Speakers shall be duly specifies in the meeting.

A copy of the constitution shall be supplied to the members once free of cost and afterwards on payment as fixed by the Executive Committee from time to time.

The amendments as approved shall be having prospective effect i.e with effect from the term starting March 2019.

